


My Position

As part of my investigation into your concerns I have obtained and reviewed the FSA’s
investigation file. I have considered the comments you have made when corresponding with
the FSA. I have also referred to the FSA’s handbook which sets out the requirements it
imposes on individuals and bodies who wish to be authorised.

Before I comment further on your complaint I must make you aware that I have previously
made a general comment about the way in which T view complaints relating to the return of
reports by the industry to the FSA on my website under the heading of “Views of the
Commissioner” (http://www.fscc.gov.uk/documents/recent—issues-feb08.pdf)‘ As part of
becoming authorised under the FSA you accepted to be bound by its rules. I note that I have
not seen any evidence of your organisation challenging the effect of the rules surrounding the
requirement for electronic submission prior to the date which the regulatory return was due.
This is clearly explained in the FSA handbook which sets out the rules with regard to
regulatory returns, which you have previously agreed to comply with as part of the
authorisation process.

The FSA’s records show that the Credit Union first became authorised by the FSA on
21% June 2002. From your correspondence with the FSA I also believe that the Credit Union
had previously submitted a number of returns and therefore would have been aware that it
was required to complete subsequent returns at regular intervals, I appreciate that you say
that, due to a misunderstanding with your auditors, it did not submit the AR20 form directly
to the FSA. However, the FSA requires all regulated firms or organisations, regardless of
their size or business activities, to submit a return on or before their due date and whilst I can
understand the reasons why the return was late, the fact remains that it was submitted after its
due date.

I can also understand your comments that you believe the FSA, given your previous
submission history, should have contacted you to establish why the return was late.
However, the FSA monitors a large number of firms and it simply is not possible for it to
contact by telephone all bodies where a return is outstanding. Instead, cutrently, the FSA,
although relying upon firms to be aware of their reporting requirements (my emphasis),
currently chooses to produce reminder letters to alert firms to the fact that a return is overdue,
I would however add that the FSA is under no obligation to issue reminders to firms and
could simply impose a penalty once the return becomes overdue.

Although the penalty for the late submission of your AR20 return may seem high, the amount
of the administrative fee is intended to recover the costs that the FSA incurs, as an end-to-end
process, in pursuing firms with overdue returns. It is intended to be separate to the FSA's
Enforcement powers and is not therefore a financial penalty. The late payment charge for the
FSA, Financial Ombudsman Service and Financial Services Compensation Scheme were all
aligned to £250. This was consulted publicly in CP05/2 and approved by the FSA Board in
March 2005.  An administrative charge for the late payment of FSA fees has been in
existence since N2 (November 2001 - when the main provisions of FSMA came into force)
and continues the process operated prior to N2 by the Personal Investment Authority.
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As I have explained above, T do sympathise with your position as it is clear that the Credit
Union incurred an administration charge despite attempting to fulfil its requirements under
the Act. However, T also have to be mindful of both your and the FSA’s actions. 1t is clear to
me that you should have been aware of the FSA’s reporting requirements and, although the
error relates at least in part to the actions of your auditor, the report was submitted late,

I appreciate that for a small credit union the administration charge may seem large but the
Act requires the FSA to have regard to the need to use its resources in the most efficient and
effective way. The simplicity of having the same charge, whether a firm pays late or submits
returns late means it is easier for firms to understand, and is more efficient and therefore cost
effective for the FSA to administer data collection and fee payment, This is explained in the
compatibility statement to CP05/2.

Details of the penalties and administration charges applied for the late submission of a return
can be found in the FSA rule book under SUP 16.3.14,

SUP 16.3.14 states

If a firm does not submit a complete report by the date on which it is due in
accordance with the rules in, or referred to in, this chapter or the provisions of
relevant legislation and any prescribed submission procedures, the firn must pay
an administrative fee of £250.

In this case, as your submission was received by the FSA some time after it was due, the FSA
is following the rules laid down in its rule book by imposing a £250 administration fee on
your firm, The onus for compliance with all of the FSA’s rules (including the timely
submission of reports required by it) falls upon those who are authorised.

This responsibility is accepted as part of the authorisation process by those applying for
authorisation. The rules on regulatory returns are clear and straightforward to find in the FSA
handbook. By imposing the administration fee following the late submission of your AR20
return, the FSA has followed its stated procedures on the matter.

I appreciate that you say that you did not receive the reminders which the FSA sent to you,
and had you done so it may have alerted you to the fact that your auditors had not submitted
the AR20 form. However, the FSA is under no statutory obligation to issue reminders as it,
as | have stated above, expects firms to be aware of their reporting requirements. Whilst it is
unfortunate that the reminders were not received, ultimately, as you did not submit your
AR20 form by the due date, you have not complied with the FSA’s rules. By imposing the
administration fee (which is detailed in its handbook under SUP 16.3.14) the I'SA has
followed its stated procedures on the matter.

Conclusion

In assessing a complaint, I have to have regard to the FSA’s investigations and findings,
together with the further representations complainants make to my office. In this instance,
whilst there appear to be genuine reasons why the return was not submitted until after its due
date, the factors which caused the return to be submitted late appear to relate to a
misunderstanding between you and your auditor and not as a result of the FSA’s actions,
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I would also add that atthough I have noted your comments in response to my Preliminary
Decision that you feel that the matter has “blown wpr out of all proportion resulting in a wasfe
of time and taxpayers’ money”. 1 can appreciate your comments but the FSA, as I have
indicated above, applies consistently its reporting requirements irrespective of the size or
nature of the firm. In this case, the Credit Union’s AR20 was not submitted on time and as a
result the FSA has applied the administration charge. | would also add that the FSA is funded
purely by the industry and is not funded by the taxpayer.

I would also add that while it is not disputed that you may have experienced postal delays, ali
firms (whether a large TFA or a small credit union) are expected to know their reporting
schedules and comply with these as a requirement of being authorised. In this case, whilst
there appear to be genuine reasons why the report was late, ultimately the fact remains that it
was not submitted on time,

I am sorry, but from the papers presented to me I am unable to find any evidence to show that
the FSA has not correctly dealt with your complaint. I am therefore unable to alter the
decision previously made by the FSA. I appreciate that you will be disappointed with my
findings, but hope that you will understand why I have arrived at this decision.

I would also point out that, as consequence of my Final Decision the £250 administration
charge is now payable in full and, if you have not already done so, you should contact the
FSA to arrange for the payment of this administration fee to be made.

Yours sincerely,
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Complaints Commissioner
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